Public Document Pack
Mark Saccoccio
Town Clerk
01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Friday, 9 August 2019
To: Members of the Planning & Transport Committee (Councillors M Freeman,
A Dodwell, D Bowater, K Cursons, A Gray, F Kharawala, G Perham, D Scott and
J Silverstone)
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information)

NOTICE OF MEETING
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Planning & Transport Committee to
be held on Wednesday, 21 August 2019 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton
THIS MEETING MAY
Buzzard, LU7 1HD.
BE RECORDED *

M Saccoccio
Town Clerk

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting.
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town
Clerk.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on the
agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

3.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15
MINUTES)
To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order
Nos 3(f) and 3(g).

Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD

PLANNING & TRANSPORT COMMITTEE

4.

Wednesday, 21 August 2019

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)
To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Planning &
Transport Committee meeting held on 24 July 2019.

5.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 7 - 8)
To consider planning applications received (attached). An updated list will be
issued on Friday 16 August 2019 (if applicable).

6.

TRANSPORT MATTERS
To consider any matters relating to highways/transport (if appropriate).

7.

INFORMATION ITEMS (Pages 9 - 10)
To receive and consider any items of information received (if applicable).

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member,
officer or member of the public. No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into
exempt session. The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control.

Agenda Item 4
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
PLANNING AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY 24 JULY 2019 AT 1930 HOURS
Present: Councillors

Also in attendance:

Members of the public:

24/P

A Dodwell – in the Chair
T Morris (substituting for J Silverstone)
F Kharawala
G Perham
K Cursons
A Gray
D Bowater (arrived 1945)
D Scott
Mark Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central
Services)
Cllr V Harvey
Cllr P Snelling (part meeting)
Laura Grimason, Gillings Planning
Max Paddick, Frontier Estates
2

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors J M Freeman and J
Silverstone (substituted by Councillor T Morris).

25/P

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.
No declarations were made and no dispensations had been requested.

26/P

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
There were no questions or statements from members of the public.

27/P

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Committee received the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee
meeting held on 3 July 2019.
Minute reference 22/P (Transport Matters): the Town Clerk confirmed he had
written to the highways authority following the previous meeting regarding
parking restrictions at the Mentmore Road Park and Memorial Gardens car park
and timings for public consultation were awaited.

Page 1

Page 13

Planning and Transport Committee
24 JULY 2019
____________________________________________________________________
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee
meeting held 3 July 2019 be approved as a correct record and were signed
accordingly.
28/P

TRANSPORT MATTERS
By invitation, Mark MacDonald, custodian for area 2 of Highways at Central
Bedfordshire Council, attended the meeting to provide some brief information
regarding the planned annual maintenance programme and structural
maintenance for highways and public rights of way. The preference was for all
highways related faults/issues to be reported via the online portal, as this would
assign a reference number and ensure that faults were investigated within five
working days. All faults were risk assessed to determine severity and priority.
The Committee was advised of current works to address uneven levels of paving
in the High Street and the trial of a product called “extremeprint”, which would
initially look like black asphalt but then be “painted” in the herringbone style of
the existing paving. It was anticipated that works to cycle stands and bollards
would also take place.
The Committee was advised that all reported highways defects were risk
assessed to determine potential risk and then allocated a priority. Due to limited
resources and budget, works were often limited to patching or “making good” to
extend the life of the roads. Any larger resurfacing works were subject to
availability of capital funding.
A query was raised about the condition of pathways and the lack of lighting in
some Town Council owned parks. Footpaths and cycle ways which were public
rights of way were inspected at least once a year and often more frequently.
A point was made about ensuring roads as well as cycle ways were safe for use
by cyclists, particularly given the need to encourage sustainable forms of
transport and the policy by Central Bedfordshire Council of promoting cycling.
It was noted that in some locations, issues needed to be addressed by utility
companies rather than by the highways authority.
Mr MacDonald was thanked for attending the meeting and invited to attend again
at a future date to give a more detailed presentation on highways matters.

29/P

PRE-APPLICATION PRESENTATION
By invitation, representatives from Gillings Planning and Frontier Estates gave a
brief pre-application presentation on proposals to build a care facility with
approximately 71 ensuite bedrooms on land between the garden centre site and
the new housing development off Hockliffe Road. The facility would also include
a nurses’ station, salon, cafeteria and would provide for nursing and dementia
care. The operator was likely to be a not-for-profit organisation already operating
in Bedfordshire and the residents would be a mix of privately funded and local
authority funded. Statistical work undertaken indicated a shortage of some 120
beds locally.

Page 2

Page

14

Planning and Transport Committee
24 JULY 2019
____________________________________________________________________
Proposals were yet to be finalised but it was hoped that work could start within a
year and the facility to be open in two years.
The Committee thanked the representatives for their presentation and would
discuss the planning application when it came forward for formal consideration.
30/P

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
The Committee reviewed applications received up until 19 July 2019.
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection
be made to application reference CB/19/01773 (39 Centauri Close) on the
following grounds:
- That enclosure of amenity land would be contrary to the original design
layout for the site and detrimental to the visual amenity of the locality
- Committee endorsed the comments made by the Tree Officer in
resepcts of the likely impact the proposal would have on the trees, the
subject of Tree Preservation Orders.
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no
objection be made to application reference CB/19/01877 (8 Chelsea Green,
Linslade), subject to parking standards being met and a condition being
added to planning consent such that the annexe only be used as ancillary
to the main dwelling house.
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no
objection be made to application reference CB/19/01641 (88-90 Clarence
Road), subject to a satisfactory noise impact assessment.
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection
be made to application reference CB/19/01567 (land at Old Linslade Road)
on the following grounds:
- That the land was Green Belt and in its opinion the application had failed
to demonstrate the existence of very special circumstances sufficient
to override established plan policy.
- Concerns regarding visibility of vehicular access and highways safety,
given the location on a difficult stretch of road with already limited
visibility over the canal and river bridges, on a road used increasingly
as a “cut through” by drivers.
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection
be made to application reference CB/19/01737 (52 Orion Way) on the
following grounds:
- That the proposed intensity of use (up to 4 clients up to 4 times/day
including weekends and Bank Holidays) represented an overly
commercial venture in a residential area and would be likely to cause
issues with car parking and noise disturbance in an already congested
residential area.

Page 3

Page

15

Planning and Transport Committee
24 JULY 2019
____________________________________________________________________
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection
be made to application reference CB/19/02040 (40 St Andrews Street) on
the following grounds:
- That the creation of an additional bedroom would then cause the
property to fail to meet car parking standards in an already very
congested area (as evidenced by the recently submitted resident
petition discussed at the Central Bedfordshire Traffic Management
meeting held on 16 July 2019)
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that objection
be made to application reference CB/19/01765 (12 Leedon Furlong) on the
following grounds:
- Overdevelopment of the site
- Lack of car parking
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no
objection be made to the following planning applications:
1.
2.

CB/19/01935
CB/19/01804

3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

CB/19/01786
CB/19/01774
CB/19/01703
CB/19/01951/VOC
CB/19/01754ADV
CB/19/01535
CB/19/01792

201-203 VANDYKE ROAD
ST MARY’S CHURCH, OLD LINSLADE
ROAD
1 DUNNOCK DRIVE
10 LEEDON FURLONG
76 CARINA DRIVE
69A HOCKLIFFE STREET
83 HOCKLIFFE STREET
89 GOLDEN RIDDY, LINSLADE
UNIT WATERBORNE WALK

RESOLVED to note the following works to trees
1.
2.
3.

31/P

CB/TRE/19/00267
CB/TRE/19/00250
CB/TRE/19/00258

323 BIDEFORD GREEN, LINSLADE
20 FAULKNERS WAY, LINSLADE
2 ROBINSWOOD CLOSE

NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN SCOPING PLAN
The Committee received and considered a report regarding the seeking of a
scoping opinion in respect of the potential merits or otherwise of creating a policy
document to help inform future land uses on land known as south of the High
Street, Leighton Buzzard.
RECOMMENDED to the Policy and Finance Committee that a maximum of
£3,000 (Budget code 920/9035 – Professional Fees) be drawn down and ring
fenced for the purposes of obtaining a planning opinion in respects of the
potential merits in the creation of a document to help guide future
development on land known as south of the High Street, Leighton Buzzard.

32/P

INFORMATION ITEMS
The Committee received correspondence from a local resident regarding car
parking and safety of children and pedestrians on Cedars Way, Linslade. This was
a recognised longstanding issue and it was agreed that a more strategic approach

Page 4

Page

16

Planning and Transport Committee
24 JULY 2019
____________________________________________________________________
to car parking issues was required. It was noted that Central Bedfordshire Council
had recently undertaken a car parking study of the town and the results were
awaited. In addition to the concerns regarding safety in the proximity to schools, it
was agreed that the climate change agenda called for increased walking and
cycling to be encouraged.
RESOLVED to write to Central Bedfordshire Council to ask that Cedars Way
be included in any recommendations for measures to address car parking
issues arising from the car parking study, and for the School Travel Plans
to be reviewed given not only these issues but the acknowledged climate
emergency.
The Committee received correspondence from Central Bedfordshire Council
regarding street naming on land at Grovebury Farm Cottages. Whilst the
Committee was disappointed that its wish to continue the theme of Roman street
names was not acceptable to the developer, it was agreed that Grovebury Farm
Close would be an acceptable alternative.
RESOLVED to advise Central Bedfordshire Council that Grovebury Farm
Close would be acceptable to the Town Council.

The meeting closed at 2058 hours.
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD 24 JULY 2019.

Chair

21 AUGUST 2019

Page 5

Page

17

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 5
Planning and Transport Committee

21 AUGUST 2019

PLANNING APPLICATIONS RECEIVED UP TO 9 AUGUST 2019
All applications are FULL applications unless marked otherwise
1. CB/19/01997

2A TAYLORS RIDE
Two storey rear extension

2. CB/19/01950

LAND ADJACENT 26 WOODMAN CLOSE
Erection of detached bungalow

3. CB/19/01985

13 CHELSEA GREEN, LINSLADE
Two storey side extension

4. CB/19/02018

26 MOWBRAY DRIVE, LINSLADE
First floor extension

5. CB/19/01982

SUTHERLANDS SCHOOL, LINSLADE
Erection of two detached dwellings.

6. CB/19/02116

CASTLE COMMERCE, OLD ROAD, LINSLADE
Demolition of two commercial units, erection of 9 flats

7. CB/19/02119

13 STANBRIDGE ROAD TERRACE
Garage extension

8. CB/19/02113

58 EAST STREET
Single storey rear extension

9. CB/19/01913

9A WATERBOURNE WALK
Change of use of former job centre to dental practice

10. CB/19/01970

13 NELSON ROAD
End of terrace to be extended and then divide the
property into 2 creating a 3 bedroom mid and 4 bed
end terrace.

11. CB/19/02055

19 MIDDLETON WAY
Garage conversion

12. CB/19/02038

16 ALBANY ROAD
Garage extension

13. CB/19/02335/RM

CLIPSTONE PARK
Reserved matters, phase 2 for approval of access,
appearance, layout, landscaping and scale on 201
dwellings, associated highways and ancillary works.

Page 7

Planning and Transport Committee

21 AUGUST 2019

14. CB/19/02177

33 MENTMORE GARDENS, LINSLADE
Lawful development certificate proposed, single
storey rear extension.

15. CB/19/02157

10 LAUREL MEWS
Single storey extension

APPLICATIONS FOR WORKS TO TREES/HEDGEROWS

1. CB/TRE/19/00275 319 HEATH ROAD
Works to trees protected by TPO. T1 fell due to
excessive shading and low amenity value, prune
lower branches, T3 Ash tree crown reduction.
2. CB/TRE/19/00281 30 HEATH COURT
Works to trees, crowning of Oak Tree, two Wellington
trees, shorten back the longer branches protruding
from the main crown to main crown outline.
3. CB/TRE/19/00255 2 HEATHWOOD CLOSE
Works to trees Acacia fell due to decay, client happy
to replace.
4. CB/TRE/19/00315 5 THE HEATH
Works to trees, fell dead Scots Pine in rear garden.
5. CB/TRE/19/00290 SILVERDALE, TAYLORS RIDE
Works to trees, silver Birch fell because tree is in
terminal decline.
6. CB/TRE/19/00304 12 THE HEATH
Works to trees proposed major pruning of oak tree.
7. CB/TRE/1900300

2A BEAUDESERT
Works to trees – Tree of Heaven, crown lifting of
lower branches overhanging footpath, driveway and
garden.

.

Page 8

Agenda Item 7

Dear Sir/Madam,

Draft Milton Keynes East Development Framework Supplementary Planning Document
Milton Keynes Council is making available the Draft Milton Keynes East Development Framework
Supplementary Planning Document for consultation and inviting comments from members of the
public, organisations and other stakeholders.
The consultation will commence on 7 August 2019 and comments must be received no later than
5.00pm on 16 October 2019.
The Milton Keynes East Development Framework Supplementary Planning Document will guide
future applications for development within the Milton Keynes East Strategic Urban Extension which
has been allocated in Plan:MK 2016-2031. The allocation covers approximately 440 hectares of land
encompassed by the M1 to the west, the A422/A509 to the north, and Moulsoe and the wider rural
area to the east.
The SPD will support policies in Plan:MK and will be considered a material consideration in the
determination of planning applications submitted to the Council.
The consultation runs from 7 August 2019 closing on 16 October 2019 at 5pm. Further information
regarding the consultation is available via the Council’s website: https://www.miltonkeynes.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy/milton-keynes-east-development-framework
The preferred method for submitting comments is on a Consultation Response Form which can be
downloaded at the link provided above or a hard copy is available in all public libraries within the
Borough and the Council’s main Civic Office. Please return your completed form to us via:
Email: development.plans@milton-keynes.gov.uk
Or post: Milton Keynes Council, Development Plans, Civic, 1 Saxon Gate East, Central Milton Keynes,
MK9 3EJ
You have received this notification because you have either commented at an earlier stage in the
document’s preparation or you are registered on the Council’s planning policy consultation
database. If you no longer wish to receive notifications of planning policy documents please let us
know by emailing development.plans@milton-keynes.gov.uk.
We look forward to hearing any comments that you may have as part of this consultation.
Yours faithfully,

Page 9

Tracy Darke
Director – Growth, Economy and Culture
Milton Keynes Council
Visit the Milton Keynes Council web site at https://www.miltonkeynes.gov.uk
Any personal data will be processed in line with the Data Protection
legislation, further details at https://www.milton-keynes.gov.uk/privacy
Please consider the environment and don't print this email unless you
really need to
**** This email and any attachments hereto are strictly confidential and
intended solely for the addressee. It may contain information which is
privileged. If you are not the intended addressee, you must not disclose,
forward, copy or take any action in reliance of this email or
attachments. If you have received this email in error, please delete it
and notify us as soon as possible.
The anti-virus software used by Milton Keynes Council is updated
regularly in an effort to minimise the possibility of viruses infecting
our systems. However, you should be aware that there is no absolute
guarantee that any files attached to this email are virus free.****

Page 10

